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By order of the Commission. 
Issued: September 9, 2025. 

Sharon Bellamy, 
Supervisory Hearings and Information 
Officer. 
[FR Doc. 2025–17606 Filed 9–11–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1460] 

Certain Vaporizer Devices, Cartridges 
Used Therewith, and Components 
Thereof (II); Notice of Institution of 
Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
August 8, 2025, under section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on 
behalf of JUUL Labs, Inc. of Washington, 
DC. The complaint alleges violations of 
section 337 based upon the importation 
into the United States, the sale for 
importation, and the sale within the 
United States after importation of 
certain vaporizer devices, cartridges 
used therewith, and components thereof 
by reason of the infringement of certain 
claims of U.S. Patent No. 12,156,533 
(‘‘the ’533 patent’’). The complaint 
further alleges that an industry in the 
United States exists as required by the 
applicable Federal Statute. The 
complainant requests that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue a 
limited exclusion order and cease and 
desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for 
any confidential information contained 
therein, may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help 
accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 
Office of the Secretary at (202) 205– 
2000. General information concerning 
the Commission may also be obtained 
by accessing its internet server at 
https://www.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Susan Orndoff, The Office of Docket 

Services, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, telephone (202) 205–1802. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority: The authority for 
institution of this investigation is 
contained in section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 
1337, and in section 210.10 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2025). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
September 9, 2025, ordered that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of 
infringement of one or more of claims 
1–8 and 10 of the ’533 patent, and 
whether an industry in the United 
States exists as required by subsection 
(a)(2) of section 337; 

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the 
plain language description of the 
accused products or category of accused 
products, which defines the scope of the 
investigation, is ‘‘vaporizer devices, also 
known as electronic nicotine delivery 
systems (‘ENDS’), cartridges used 
therewith, and components of such 
devices and cartridges (cartridge 
housings, e-liquid nicotine salt 
formulations, heater components 
(sometimes referred to as atomizers), 
chargers, batteries), and subassemblies 
of the foregoing.’’; 

(3) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainant is: JUUL Labs, 
Inc., 1000 F Street NW, Washington, DC 
20004. 

(b) The respondents are the following 
entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint is to be served: 
NJOY, LLC, 9449 N 90th Street, Suite 

201, Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
NJOY Holdings, Inc., 9449 N 90th 

Street, Suite 201, Scottsdale, AZ 
85258 

Altria Group, Inc., 6601 W Broad Street, 
Richmond, VA 23230 

Altria Group Distribution Company, 
6601 W Broad Street, Richmond, VA 
23230 

Altria Client Services LLC, 6601 W 
Broad Street, Richmond, VA 23230 

(4) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
shall designate the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge. 

The Office of Unfair Import 
Investigations will not participate as a 
party in this investigation. 

Responses to the complaint and the 
notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such 
responses will be considered by the 
Commission if received not later than 20 
days after the date of service by the 
Commission of the complaint and the 
notice of investigation. Extensions of 
time for submitting responses to the 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation will not be granted unless 
good cause therefor is shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
complaint and in this notice may be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the complaint and this 
notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the complaint and this notice 
and to enter an initial determination 
and a final determination containing 
such findings, and may result in the 
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against 
the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: September 9, 2025. 

Sharon Bellamy, 
Supervisory Hearings and Information 
Officer. 
[FR Doc. 2025–17605 Filed 9–11–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

[Docket No. DEA–1595] 

Importer of Controlled Substance 
Application: Fisher Clinical Services, 
Inc. 

AGENCY: Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Justice. 
ACTION: Notice of application. 

SUMMARY: Fisher Clinical Services, Inc. 
has applied to be registered as an 
importer of basic class(es) of controlled 
substance(s). Refer to SUPPLEMENTARY 
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INFORMATION listed below for further 
drug information. 
DATES: Registered bulk manufacturers of 
the affected basic class(es), and 
applicants, therefore, may submit 
electronic comments on or objections to 
the issuance of the proposed registration 
on or before October 14, 2025. Such 
persons may also file a written request 
for a hearing on the application on or 
before October 14, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: The Drug Enforcement 
Administration requires that all 
comments be submitted electronically 
through the Federal eRulemaking Portal, 
which provides the ability to type short 

comments directly into the comment 
field of the web page or attach a file for 
lengthier comments. Please go to 
https://www.regulations.gov and follow 
the online instructions at that sit for 
submitting comments. Upon submission 
of your comment, you will receive a 
Comment Tracking Number, your 
comment has been successfully 
submitted and there is no need to 
resubmit the same comment. All request 
for a hearing must be sent to (1) Drug 
Enforcement Administration, Attn: 
Hearing Clerk/OALJ, 8701 Morrissette 
Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152, and 
(2) Drug Enforcement Administration, 

Attn: DEA Federal Register 
Representative/DPW, 8701 Morrissette 
Drive Springfield, Virginia 22152. All 
request for a hearing should also be sent 
to: Drug Enforcement Administration, 
Attn: Administrator, 8701 Morrissette 
Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In 
accordance with 21 CFR 1301.34(a), this 
is notice that on August 22, 2025, Fisher 
Clinical Services, Inc., 7554 Schantz 
Road, Allentown, Pennsylvania 18106– 
9032, applied to be registered as an 
importer of the following basic class(es) 
of controlled substance(s): 

Controlled substance Drug code Schedule 

Marihuana Extract ........................................................................................................................................................... 7350 I 
Marihuana ........................................................................................................................................................................ 7360 I 
Tetrahydrocannabinols .................................................................................................................................................... 7370 I 
5-Methoxy-N-N-Dimethyltryptamine ................................................................................................................................ 7431 I 
Dimethyltryptamine .......................................................................................................................................................... 7435 I 
Psilocybin ......................................................................................................................................................................... 7437 I 
Methylphenidate .............................................................................................................................................................. 1724 II 
Levorphanol ..................................................................................................................................................................... 9220 II 
Noroxymorphone ............................................................................................................................................................. 9668 II 
Tapentadol ....................................................................................................................................................................... 9780 II 

The company plans to import the 
listed controlled substances for clinical 
trials only. No other activities for these 
drug codes are authorized for this 
registration. 

Approval of permit applications will 
occur only when the registrant’s 
business activity is consistent with what 
is authorized under 21 U.S.C. 952(a)(2). 
Authorization will not extend to the 
import of Food and Drug 
Administration approved or non- 
approved finished dosage forms for 
commercial sale. 

Justin Wood, 
Acting Deputy Assistant Administrator. 
[FR Doc. 2025–17650 Filed 9–11–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

[Docket No. DEA–1594] 

Importer of Controlled Substances 
Application: Fresenius Kabi USA, LLC 

AGENCY: Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Justice. 
ACTION: Notice of application. 

SUMMARY: Fresenius Kabi USA, LLC has 
applied to be registered as an importer 
of basic class(es) of controlled 
substance(s). Refer to SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION listed below for further 
drug information. 

DATES: Registered bulk manufacturers of 
the affected basic class(es), and 
applicants, therefore, may submit 
electronic comments on or objections to 
the issuance of the proposed registration 
on or before October 14, 2025. Such 
persons may also file a written request 
for a hearing on the application on or 
before October 14, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: The Drug Enforcement 
Administration requires that all 
comments be submitted electronically 
through the Federal eRulemaking Portal, 
which provides the ability to type short 
comments directly into the comment 
field on the web page or attach a file for 
lengthier comments. Please go to 
https://www.regulations.gov and follow 
the online instructions at that site for 
submitting comments. Upon submission 
of your comment, you will receive a 
Comment Tracking Number. Please be 
aware that submitted comments are not 
instantaneously available for public 
view on https://www.regulations.gov. If 
you have received a Comment Tracking 
Number, your comment has been 
successfully submitted and there is no 
need to resubmit the same comment. All 
requests for a hearing must be sent to: 
(1) Drug Enforcement Administration, 
Attn: Hearing Clerk/OALJ, 8701 
Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia 
22152; and (2) Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Attn: DEA Federal 
Register Representative/DPW, 8701 
Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia 
22152. All requests for a hearing should 

also be sent to: Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Attn: Administrator, 
8701 Morrissette Drive, Springfield, 
Virginia 22152. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In 
accordance with 21 CFR 1301.34(a), this 
is notice that on August 5, 2025, 
Fresenius Kabi USA, LLC, 3159 Staley 
Road, Grand Island, New York 14072– 
2028, applied to be registered as an 
importer of the following basic class(es) 
of controlled substance(s): 

Controlled substance Drug 
code Schedule 

Remifentanil .............................. 9739 II 

The company plans to import the 
listed controlled substance(s) as bulk 
active pharmaceutical ingredient to 
manufacture Food and Drug 
Administration (FDA)-approved dosage 
forms. No other activity for this drug 
code is authorized for this registration. 

Approval of permit applications will 
occur only when the registrant’s 
business activity is consistent with what 
is authorized under 21 U.S.C. 952(a)(2). 
Authorization will not extend to the 
import of FDA-approved or non- 
approved finished dosage forms for 
commercial sale. 

Justin Wood, 
Acting Deputy Assistant Administrator. 
[FR Doc. 2025–17583 Filed 9–11–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE P 
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